
Minutes 

Bristol Select Board 

July 13, 2015 

Present:  Select Board members:  Janet Cote, Rick Alpers, Shaun Lagueux, Betsy Schneider, Paul 

Manganiello, and Town Administrator Michael Capone.   

The meeting was called to order at 6:00PM. 

Mr. Alpers made a motion to approve the public and non-public minutes from June 18, 2015 and June 

25, 2015,seconded by Ms. Schneider. With no further discussion, the Board voted 5-0 in favor of 

approving the minutes. 

Consent agenda: Ms. Schneider made a motion to approve the consent agenda dated July 13, 2015 to 

include the items named therein, seconded by Mr. Alpers. The Board voted 5-0 to approve the motion.  

Boyd Smith-NLRA:  Mr. Smith presented the Board with information regarding a watershed survey and 

grant opportunity.  Mr. Smith stated that he is asking the Town of Bristol for a letter of support as part 

of the pre proposal application for funding to implement recommended and identified phases of the 

watershed master plan.  The goal of the proposal is to take ¾ of funding for infrastructure projects. The 

funding is from the federal government and DES.  If the grant gets approved the funding will be awarded 

in spring 2016 and it will be a 30 month project.  The Town’s commitment will be to work with NLRA in 

partnership with DES.  NLRA will work with the Town road agent as part of the project match. Materials 

are often covered by the grant. Mr. Smith had provided draft language to the Board and asked them to 

consider signing the letter.  Mr. Manganiello asked if the NLRA was providing in kind services with the 

Town Highway Department to maintain this. Mr. Smith replied that the labor side of the grant is the 

Town match. Mr. Lagueux asked if the non-match monies were the materials. Mr. Smith replied that 

materials and a design element could be part of this.  Mr. Alpers asked if the catch basins at Avery-

Crouse Beach were part of the project and how big they would be.  Mr. Smith replied that the project at 

that beach would primarily be basins that allow sediments to settle. The sedimentary traps would need 

to be cleaned out on an ongoing basis. Mr. Smith commented that right now there is no real design 

regarding the basins but if the size doesn’t make sense this doesn’t have to be done. Ms. Schneider 

asked if a special company is needed to clean out the basins.  Mr. Smith replied that the Town vacuum 

truck could be used to clean out the basins.  Mrs. Cote asked if the work would include state culverts. 

Mr. Smith replied that the project is focusing on town roads.  Ms. Schneider asked what the response 

has been from other towns. Mr. Smith replied that Groton, Hebron, and Alexandria have provided 

letters of support.  Bridgewater has not replied yet.  Ms. Schneider made a motion to provide a letter of 

support to NLRA to pursue a grant so it does not tie the Town to any funding, seconded by Mr. 

Manganiello.  The Board voted 4-0-1 in favor of the motion.  The Town Administrator provided the Chair 

with a letter he had prepared prior to the meeting which she signed.  The letter was given to Mr. Smith. 



79-E Covenant for 12 Central Square:  Mr. Capone commented that the covenant had been sent to the 

Board for their review to see if they were okay with the language.   Mrs. Cote commented that the draft 

language is standard language through the RSAs. Mrs. Cote commented that it might be helpful to have 

a design with the application in the future. Mr. Lagueux made a motion to authorize the Town 

Administrator to execute the 79-E covenant with Russel Hertrich, seconded by Mr. Alpers.  The Board 

voted 5-0 in favor of the motion.  

Review of New and Revised Policies:   

Mr. Lagueux made a motion to take the property disposal, grants and donations, and purchasing policies 

and procedures off the table, seconded by Mr. Alpers.  The Board voted 5-0 in favor of this motion.   

 Property Disposal Policy:  Mrs. Cote commented that this policy is in part in reference to 

different surplus equipment the Town was getting rid of and record keeping of the actions.  Mr. Alpers 

made a motion to approve the Property Disposal Policy as presented, seconded by Mr. Lagueux. The 

Board voted 5-0 to approve the motion. The Board signed the policy. Ms. Schneider asked what a 

cooperative sales agreement is. Mr. Lagueux replied that he imagines that it’s coming to an agreement 

on a price and the policy does state that it’s per the approval of the Select Board. 

 Grants and Donations Policy:  Mrs. Cote commented that the items in italics are changes to the 

policy that is in place now. Mr. Alpers made a motion to approve the policy as presented, seconded by 

Mr. Lagueux.  Mr. Manganiello commented that he is concerned with department heads seeking grant 

funds that do not require matching Town funds without the approval of the Board. The Board should at 

least be in the loop.  Mrs. Cote commented that  before grants are applied for the Select Board should 

be aware of the grant applications.  Mr. Lagueux commented that the policy is saying the department 

heads can apply for funds that do not require matching funds and that the Board still oversees the 

acceptance of any grants.  Ms. Schneider commented that the Board should still be aware of what is 

happening.  Mr. Alpers replied that the Town Administrator can communicate to the Board what is 

happening with grant applications. Mrs. Cote commented that there needs to be  checks and balances. 

Ms. Schneider commented that if the Town Administrator can say yay or nay the policy needs to say that 

communication about what the department heads are applying for will be shared with the Board.  Mr. 

Alpers replied that this information is in the status reports and it gets to the Board in a timely manner.  

Mrs. Cote commented that the policy wording will be amended to include this language and the revised 

policy will be on the next meeting agenda. Mr. Alpers made a motion to approve the Grants and 

Donations Policy as amended, seconded by Mr. Lagueux. The Board voted 4-1 in favor of the motion.  

 Purchasing Policy and Procedures:  Mr. Lagueux made a motion to accept the Town of Bristol’s 

Purchasing Policy and Procedure for discussion, seconded by Mr. Alpers.  Ms. Schneider commented 

that what the Town had before was fine and she doesn’t see the need to have the Town Administrator 

make all the decisions as part of the Board’s job is to oversee purchases. Mrs. Cote asked where the 

language in the policy came from.  Mr. Capone replied that a lot of the language came from the Town of 

Swanzey’s policy.  Mrs. Cote asked why the purchase order piece was removed.  Mr. Capone replied that 

he got a sense from the department heads questioning the significance of generating a PO unless one 



was required by a vendor. This seems to add on an extra piece of paper that doesn’t lend any real 

significance to the process.  Mrs. Cote replied that the signing off on purchase orders is needed as part 

of the process for checks and balances. Mr. Capone replied that there will be either a verbal or written 

review by the Board anyway so the Board will see it all.  Mrs. Cote commented that if the auditors are 

fine with it then it is okay.  Mr. Alpers commented that he is comfortable with the policy as presented as 

the Town Administrator will sign off on purchase orders.  Mr. Manganiello asked why there are three 

cost ranges and not just two as most purchases are in the $1,500 to $3,000 range.  Mr. Capone replied 

that there is a distinction to be drawn by those items that are contemplated in the operating budget 

versus unplanned purchases that might come up during the year.  There are two levels of 

documentation at the higher levels that the Board will review. Mrs. Cote asked if there should be a 

disclaimer in the policy regarding emergency items section.  Mr. Capone replied that something can be 

added in. Ms. Schneider asked about warrant articles being included in the policy. Mrs. Cote agreed that 

there should be some language in the policy about the warrant article process.  Mr. Lagueux 

commented that the disqualification of bidders is very important to include as this is an issue that 

sometimes needs to be addressed.  The Board agreed that the draft will be revised and the Board will 

review the changes.  

31:95-b Acceptance of Unanticipated Revenue:  Mr. Capone commented that this was in response to 

the three donations totaling $800 made for the fireworks. The money is specifically to be applied for the 

fireworks display.  The Board needs to post the acceptance as an agenda item and the Board has to vote 

to accept them with specific intent that they be used for the fireworks.  Mr. Lagueux made a motion to 

accept the donations for the fireworks display, seconded by Ms. Schneider. The Board voted 5-0 to 

approve the motion. 

Town Clerk/Tax Collector:  Mr. Capone informed the Board that Ms. Simpson was at a conference.  Mrs. 

Cote commented that the Town Clerk/Tax Collector will be on the next meeting agenda. 

838 Lake Street:  Mrs. Cote informed the Board that the offer for the property at 838 Lake Street in the 

amount of $520,000 was accepted by the property owner. Mr. Capone commented that he spoke with 

town counsel and has a checklist with a timetable for the special town meeting.  One of the first steps is 

to petition the court. To get the clock started the Board has to discuss the petition itself. The vote has to 

be posted for 10 days before the petition is filed and a copy has to be sent to DRA on or before the date 

the petition is filed with the court.  The Board needs to agree on language for the warrant regarding how 

to proceed with the purchase.  Mr. Alpers commented that he would like to wait two weeks to go over 

numbers before discussing. Ms. Schneider asked how Superior Court looks at something that is not an 

emergency.  Mrs. Cote replied that it’s the courts prerogative and that in the past these have been 

approved.  Mr. Manganiello commented that RSA 41:14-A might be applicable in this situation and that 

the Board has to first submit the plan to the Planning Board. Mr. Alpers commented that this does not 

fit the criteria of the statute.  Ms. Schneider commented that it does not say anything about buying 

property. Mrs. Cote replied that this can be investigated to make sure it’s not part of the process. Mr. 

Capone will check with town counsel.  

 



Town Administrator’s Report:  

The next Select Board meeting is Tuesday July 28th at 6:00pm. 

The All Towns Board meeting is being held at the Old Town Hall on July 23rd at 6:00pm.  Responses have 

been received from all of the towns except for Bridgewater. 

RS Fireworks confirmed that they want to do a fireworks show with the town. The town has to come up 

with $2,500 to pay for the fireworks and RS will donate everything else. Mr. Lagueux commented that 

he likes the idea of two separate shows in town and that the donations already received are for a July 4th 

show and not necessarily for an Old Home Day show. Ms. Schneider agreed that the shows should be 

kept separate.  The Board agreed to have the fireworks show on August 1st with a rain date of Sunday 

August 2nd.  

Mr. Mills has requested permission to use the Old Town Hall for a contra dance. Mr. Alpers asked if this 

is run by a group or organization.  Mr. Mills replied that he will hire a fiddler and caller himself. The date 

and time will be advertised.  Mr. Alpers commented that he would agree to compromise on the need to 

require the payment of a fee for the event.  The Town needs to have a policy in place regarding fees and 

insurance in the future.  Ms. Schneider commented that she recommends that liability insurance should 

be done. Mr. Capone stated that a liability rider was required for a previous event. Mr. Mills agreed to 

supply an insurance rider for the contra dance.  

Marylee Guertin requested to join the Decorating Committee. A committee member emailed the 

recommendation to the Board.  The Board was in favor of adding Ms. Guertin to the Committee. 

In regards to the new policy to dispose of equipment, the Board needs to okay listing the Suburban for 

auction.  Ms. Schneider asked if the Town can do a minimum bid. Mr. Capone will check on this. 

There is a follow up to the discussion regarding the Mica property and burying the propane tank there. 

The amount of space underground needs to be determined. The six foot depth includes the tank sitting 

on one foot of fill.  There is probably 4 to 5 feet of depth there. The depth needs to be confirmed to 

continue the discussion. 

Select Board Items:   

Mr. Alpers commented that he and Janet Cote met with Mr. Hertrich to start discussions on the propane 

tanks at the Mica Lot.   

He also mentioned that the next Economic Development Task Force meeting is on July 14th.  

Mr. Manganiello attended the Planning Board meeting and the subdivision for Shackett’s was approved. 

Mr. Manganiello told the Planning Board that the Economic Development committee is working on a 

checklist for people who are starting a new business in town.  Mr. Capone commented that Christina 

and Chief Yannuzzi are reviewing the existing document and Christina will formalize a draft. There will 

be links on the web site that outline the process.  



Ms. Schneider commented that in regards to the government car she noticed that the new cruiser has 

new plate number six. The Town has basically six cruisers right now. Ms. Schneider asked what 

happened to plates on the government car. Ms. Schneider also commented that she is concerned with 

the liability of town employees using the vehicle as it is marked as a police vehicle.  Mr. Capone will look 

into the plate. Mr. Alpers commented that it is questionable use but that he is comfortable because 

Chief Yannuzzi is using the vehicle and he is a public safety official. Ms. Schneider commented that it still 

has a police plate on it. Mr. Alpers commented that the police lettering bothers him more than the 

plate.   

Ms. Schneider made a motion to have an independent facilities audit done for the Police Department 

from an independent company and to see the funds come from the general budget, seconded by Mr. 

Manganiello.  Ms. Schneider commented that she is concerned that the space needs is becoming more 

of a wish list. The spreadsheet includes four prison cells, a large classroom, and locker rooms. Ms. 

Schneider commented that it would be a disservice to the town to not have this done. Mr. Manganiello 

commented that the last draft copy for needs of potential use included a dispatch center. This is not on 

the plan to build but Chief Lewis felt that if there was space to build it the town could build a call center. 

The Board voted 3-2 in favor of the motion. Mr. Lagueux commented that the Board just committed to 

something for which the cost is not known. Mr. Alpers commented that the audit could be expensive. 

Ms. Schneider commented that it is the Board’s responsibility to have the information to make the right 

decision. 

Public Comment:   

Mr. David Hill commented that not included in the four proposals was an addition to the current 

building and that the Board should consider adding on to it.  Mrs. Cote replied that the Board is not 

done with the space needs process yet. The Board did make an offer to keep the Lake Street property as 

an opportunity and allows the property to be tied up for discussion at a special town meeting. Mr. 

Capone commented that he reworked the spreadsheet regarding the fourth option and submitted the 

revisions to the architects. He has not heard back yet. Mr. Hill asked if the fourth option was two 

buildings. Mrs. Cote replied that it was.  Mr. Hill commented that he feels that there is a lack of public 

input. Mrs. Cote replied that there have been meetings and the public has been allowed to speak during 

the discussions.  

Ms. Barbara Greenwood commented that she has had opportunities to carry on conversations asking 

people how they feel about the police facilities. The overriding comment she has heard is that they do 

not want to see a band aid set on this. This issue needs to be looked at properly and the town needs to 

go with the best resolution to the problem. 

Mr. Paul Simard commented that he agrees that a space needs study needs to be done by a professional 

organization. The two public hearings, according to the RSA that Mr. Manganiello brought up will give 

this a better chance of passing. 



Mr. David Hill commented that the state has called the facility sub-standard and the public should know 

what the town is non-compliant with.  Mrs. Cote replied that there are deficiency issues and also RSA 

issues that need to be addressed. 

Mr. Ernie Richards commented that the town needs to have plans in place before a special town 

meeting in order to make decisions.   

 With no further public business to come before the Board, at 8:04 PM Mr. Lagueux made a motion for 

the Board to go into non-public session under RSA 91-A:3 (a), (d) and (e), seconded by Ms. Schneider.  A 

roll call vote was held. The motion carried by a vote of 5-0. 

At 8:42 PM, Mr. Lagueux made a motion to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Schneider.  The 

Board voted 5-0 in favor of adjournment. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Wendy Costigan 

____________________________        ____________________________ 

Janet Cote, Chair                  Shaun Lagueux, Vice Chair 

 

____________________________         ____________________________    

Rick Alpers, Select Board                  Paul Manganiello, Select Board 

 

____________________________ 

Betsy Schneider, Select Board 

 

 

 

 


